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PREFACE

Background to the Study

This report has been prepared by Donald Insall diases Ltd on behalf of Wirral
Council. Its purpose is to clarify the designatairthe Conservation Area, which will
protect and enhance the character of WellingtordR&aw Brighton.

Scope and Structure of the Study

The scope of this Conservation Area Appraisal amhdgement Plan is based on the
guidelines published by English Heritage (‘GuidanoeConservation Area Appraisals’
and ‘Guidance on the Management of Conservatioma#réoth dated February 2006)
and represents a factual and objective analysisacéordance with the guidelines, the
following framework has been used as the basithfsranalysis:-

= Location and population

= Origins and development of the settlement

= Prevailing or former uses and their influence canplorm or building
type

= Archaeological significance

= Architectural and historic qualities of buildings

= Contribution made by key unlisted buildings

= Character and relationship of spaces

= Prevalent and traditional building materials

= Local details

= Contribution made by green spaces, trees, hedges, e

= Setting of the Conservation Area and its relatignsivith the
surrounding landscape

= Extent of loss, intrusion or damage

= Existence of any neutral areas

The document has been structured to encompassaieeseof study and concludes with
recommendations for the Conservation Area boundemy other matters such as
provision of Article 4 Directions.

Existing Designations, Legal Framework for Conservaon Areas and the Powers
of the Local Authority

Since the 1967 Civic Amenities Act local authostleve been empowered to designate
as Conservation Areas those areas within theiriatstvhich were considered 'special'.
The subsequent Planning (Listed Buildings and Quasien Areas) Act of 1990
consolidated those powers and defined ConservAtiess as:-
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"areas of special architectural or historic intetebe character or appearance
of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance".

Such areas are diverse. They may be large or;smsillential or commercial; civic or
industrial; old or relatively modern. They may negent social ideals or civic pride.
They may be specifically designed or speculatiytyduced; modest or grand. They
may contain Listed Buildings of architectural ostbric interest or may simply have
local historic association. However, common to ulill be an identifiable
environmental quality which should be protectedanfransympathetic redevelopment or
alteration.

Wirral Council has declared 25 Conservation Aréasughout the Borough reflecting
the variety of building styles and environmentsibitéd within its borders.

The content of the Planning (Listed Buildings anohs§ervation Areas) Act 1990 is
clarified by national Planning Policy Guidance (RBJ Planning and the Historic
Environment and is supported by more recent Repklaaning Guidance for the North
West (RPG13), which identifies as a key objectie theed to ensure active
management of the region’s environmental and allassets.

The principles of these documents are further stp@oby Wirral Council’s local
Heritage Conservation policies contained withirlitstary Development Plan.

This legislation and policy framework enables théharity to exercise greater control
over development within Conservation Areas and, revheppropriate, this may be
supplemented by the use of 'Article 4 Directiomsrémove permitted development
rights. In this way, minor changes, such as windeplacement or loft conversions,
which may be cumulatively detrimental, can be cul®d.

National policy stipulates that local authorities/é a duty to review, from time to time,

their regions to ensure that places of specialiteathiral or historic interest are being

protected. The boundaries of existing Conservaticeas may be revised, new areas
may be designated and those areas which have bededeto the extent that their

special character has been lost may be de-designate

Whilst the Council recognises that, for Conservatidreas to remain 'live' and

responsive to a changing society, changes must vatidoccur, it nevertheless

undertakes to ensure that all changes make av@ositintribution to the character and
appearance of its Conservation Areas and do nait resaany serious loss of character or
features.

Planning legislation supports the authority in thig increasing its control over
development. It does this in the following ways:

= Buildings and structures may not be demolishedawittiormal consent
from the Council (Conservation Area Consent).

= Trees are protected and all work to them requimssent from the
Council.
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= New development is expected to reflect the quabtydesign and
construction of the surrounding area and should emak positive
contribution to the area's character.

= Local planning authorities may, if necessary, e€gerceven greater
control by removing the basic permitted developmeights of
householders.

= Under section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildireged Conservation
Areas) Act 1990, the Council has a legal obligattonensure that
"special attention shall be paid to the desirabibf preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance” of the winea formulating
decisions on planning applications.

The first step to protecting the inherent qualitésa Conservation Area is having a

thorough understanding of its character and PlgnRiolicy Guidance PPG15 advises

that "the definition of an area's special intestsiuld derive from an assessment of the
elements that contribute to (and detract from) it".

This should then underpin local policies for theaar protection. Such a definition
requires a thorough appraisal of the area to asisesontribution of each element (e.g.
buildings, boundaries, trees, surfaces, etc.)a@atka’s overall character. PPG15 notes
that "the more clearly the special architectural hestoric interest that justifies
designation is defined and recorded; the soundebgithe basis for local plan policies
and development control decisions".

Whilst an appraisal aims to identify the essengi@ments which give an area its
character, it is not intended as a detailed evaluadf each building and feature.
Therefore any buildings, features and details nifijhave importance even though not
specifically referred to in the document and anyssions do not indicate lack of merit
or interest.
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LOCATION
GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION

Wellington Road is on the north-west facihgre of New Brighton which
itself is located on the north-eastern corner ef\Wirral Peninsula. It is part
of the larger settlement of Wallasey which includes Liscard, Egremont,
Seacombe and Poulton and is separated from Birkdrhyethe docks to the
south. To the west lie the lower lying, open lahdVallasey and Leasowe.

TOPOGRAPHY

This area of New Brighton is formed by aesenf ‘shelves’ of land rising
progressively from north to south. The coastalgei is a sandy beach,
inland from which is the Marine Gardens area, congtd on stabilised sand
which was still open shore up to about 100 yeans &ghind this is a line of
shallow cliffs, about 20 metres in height formed red and yellow
sandstones. At one point there is a series ohriading eminences called
Red Noses and Yellow Noses, reflecting their fornd aock colour.
Wellington Road runs east-west along the level guoat the top of these
shallow cliffs and the land rises further to thaithoeventually reaching
about 50 metres above sea level.

GENERAL USAGE

The Wellington Road Conservation Area is alnemtirely residential with

the exception of the lifeboat station and a smalinber of buildings

associated with the recreational uses found wiking’'s Parade Gardens
and Marine Park.

CONSERVATION AREA BOUNDARY AND STATUTORY DESIGNATIONS
Wellington Road was designated as a conservatia an 1973.

The form of the conservation area is a long redégangning approximately
east-west. The north boundary follows the lin&kKofg's Parade, which is
the main road along the foreshore, although it s Isack from the
breakwater by a pedestrian promenade and open déegriand. The
southern boundary follows the centre line of Welion Road with one
small section cut back so as to take in the la@"@dsidential development
of Marine Park Mansions. The narrow east boundatige eastern edge of
Marine Park abutting Rowson Street, whilst to trestithe boundary turns
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2.2.2

south from King’s Parade to include Red Noses artl gf the woodland
adjacent to The CIiff.

The area includes 9 listed buildings, 10 individuai group Tree
Preservation Orders and 3 areas designated asgrdzarspace.

HSTORICAL DEVELOPMENT
EARLY HISTORY AND ORIGINS OF SURROUNDING AREA

New Brighton did not exist as a separate sbnmin the medieval period,
being at that time part of Liscard. The manor ofchrd, which is not
mentioned in the Domesday Survey, first occurdefeodaryof Halton at
the time of Edward | when, under the name of Lkstar was held by
Richard de Aston under the barons of Halton. dhtpassed to the family of
Melas or Meolse who had previously been tenantseoAstons. The last of
the Meolse family who died without heir in 1739 begthed the manor to
the Houghs. It was then sold by the executorhaiffamily to John Penketh
whose daughter and heiress married John Dennil d&dd(Mortimer
1847).

The area appears to have remained more ®rctespletely undeveloped
until the early C19th, and consisted of sand dumed heathland.
Development in this area of the Wirral began toeappalong the Mersey
shore and around the ferry landing at Egremonggpanse to the increased
commercial and residential developments in Livelopposite.

19TH CENTURY DEVELOPMENT

The earliest buildings in the north east epof the Wirral Peninsula appear
to have been connected with shipping activity om KMersey. There is a
complex of shifting sandbanks where the river eeemprthwards past the
land mass of the Wirral and it was found necessargark their location to
avoid ships coming aground. Perch Rock lighthauas built in 1827 to
succeed a wooden marker pole surmounted with dikentimber structure
known as ‘the perch’. The lighthouse was desigmedohn Foster Junior,
the Liverpool Corporation surveyor of the day.

Just inland of the Lighthouse is Fort Perdekk a low sandstone sea fort,
built between 1826 and 1829 to designs by Captdin $ykes to protect the
entrance to the Mersey. It was equipped with 3@nder guns on iron

traversing platforms. The fort also contained &wes for heating shot.
Although built in the early 19th century, the fbds more of a 16th century
appearance.
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The lighthouse (I) and Fort Perch Rock

2.2.3 With an eye to commercial opportunity, Jarddkerton, a Liverpool
Merchant, in 1830 bought 127 acres of land at trehrend of the township
of Liscard on which to establish an area of newdesgial development.
The originator of the name ‘New Brighton’ is noeat but it was obviously
an attempt to reproduce in the north west the dastiile town of Brighton,
Sussex, which had flourished in the Regency periothe town was
conceived as ‘The sea-bathing rendezvoaisexcellenceof the Lancashire
people of note.’

Mortimer writes that Atherton:

‘conceived the magnificent design of founding ateresive watering place in
the north east angle of this townshigsgard, and in furtherance of his plan
purchased one hundred and seventy acres of thatwias then a mere heap of
sandhills; but nature so far as regarded scenerg kntal attractions, had done
wonders towards the adaptation of the ground to plieposes of a marine
residence. Rising out of the sea by a succesdidofty ridges it offered an
inducement for the erection of villas, retreatingecabove another, without the
view from the upper ranges being in the slightesgrde intercepted by the
houses below them. The convex, semicircular fdrtheocoast, presenting one
front to the Mersey and another to the open seagirsg eastward over the town
of Liverpool, Waterloo, Formby, Blackcomt&gckpooP), and even to the Old
Man of Conistone, and westward to the Ormshea@sWhlsh mountains, and a
part of Cheshire and Flintshire, embraces a fiefdvision truly grand and
picturesque, to which must be added on the notththa variety arising from
the numerous vessels and craft of every descriptianare continually passing,
as they enter or depart from Liverpool.’

2.2.4 The tithe map of about 1840 (Appendix E1wgha notional grid of streets
running eastwards from the Mersey estuary and sa@utts from the
northern shore. Some of the plots had been deseldyy this time,
particularly those along Wellington Road, paraltethe northern shore but
much of the land remained vacant. Reference t@werd accompanying
the map shows that the land was largely open heattes or sandhills. The
map shows about 12 new houses in Wellington Reatyding Cliff Villa,
standing in its own extensive grounds at the westad of the road.

2.2.5 The parts of the development which facedstee seem to have proceeded
relatively quickly but the inland plots were takap more slowly. The
Ordnance Survey map of the 1870s (Appendix E2) gtibws extensive
areas of vacant land. The development which hexal leen completed was
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2.2.6

2.2.7

2.2.8

in three bands — that along the shore on Wellindgtoad, a parallel band
further south and higher up on Montpellier crescé&ilbion Street and
Church Road, and the houses on the highest landangs’s Road and St.
George’s Mount. St James’s Church on Victoria Roaé of the streets just
south of Wellington road is from 1854-6 by Georgih&t Scott.

Towards the end of the 19th century, the Idpweent of New Brighton
accelerated and was given particular impetus byatheal of the railways,
making the area within easy reach of the Liverpuoelropolis. The long
planned Mersey railway tunnel opened to trains886land New Brighton
station was opened in 1888. This increased greéadynumber of day
visitors to the town.

However, it appears that the development nedsyoing according to the
original plan. The working classes were colonisamdjstrict which had been
intended for the exclusive use of members of thedemisie and industrial
aristocracy. The local historian Ellison writethex loftily:

‘A few years later an ugly terrace of cheap ladghouses was built and the
sands were disfigured by tawdry sideshows andikee |Degeneration set in
quickly and the place slid down the social scalgl Bulley could write in 1889:
“Along the shore is a narrow, unsafe promenadelechiAquarium Parade, but
perhaps better known as ‘Ham & Egg Terrace’, theofaite resort of the
Liverpool and Lancashire trippers and roughs.... &lare stationed the eating
house and refreshment room keepers, whose corsihicitations to dine early
and often are such a nuisance.... With more visiamd fewer trippers, New
Brighton would be more flourishing.”

: " Marlne Park Promenade, New Brighton f

Postcards showing holidaymakers in about 1900

The end of the 19th century saw a boom imtiraber of visitors to New
Brighton. The entrepreneurs of the town responbedncreasing the
attractions and leisure facilities available. Pegiod of 1897- 1900 saw the
construction of the New Brighton Tower, designedMgxwell and Tuke,
who had just completed Blackpool Tower. The Newglon tower was
over 100 feet taller than Blackpool's and must héwened a striking
landmark from both land and sea. The tower boastllroom, gardens, an
‘Old English Fairground’, a theatre seating 3,50@ller skating arena and a
stadium which was used for ‘Wild West’ shows.

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 10 of 34



WELLINGTON ROAD CONSERVATIONAREA APPRAISAL& MANAGEMENT PLAN

2.2.9

2.2.10

2.3

23.1

2.3.2

2.3.3

At the beginning of the 20th century, howetee town seemed to begin to
lose its way. Was it to become a select resortierwealthy, or a paradise
for the working man eager to spend his hard-eanaggkes on one of his few
annual holidays? Those who favoured the formerssosupported the New
Brighton Improvement Association which aimed toldbuiew gardens, to
demolish the Ham and Egg Parade and to ban unolesbahaviour. In an
effort to improve the standards and quality of dteactions for visitors the
local council stepped in to carry out improvemenits1905 the Ham & Egg
Parade was purchased by them and demolished to wakeor a new
promenade. This was set out on reclaimed landetaviest of the approach
to the Fort Perch Rock. There was (and still ishaine lake, the Marine
Park with bowls and tennis and further along agam King's Parade
Gardens providing further gardens, tennis and baveas.

An ironic letter appeared in the Wallasewslen 1912:

‘Our aim is to make New Brighton a place of restfatdens and sweet music, a
sort of threshold to Paradise, where candidatesdelestial glory could come
and exercise their embryonic wings.’

20" AND 21°" CENTURY CHANGES

Following this major reclamation programmaywen on the OS map from
the 1930s (Appendix E5), by which the permanentedime was effectively
moved northwards by about 150 metres, one of that s@nificant
developments was the construction of the New Boigtgathing Pool. This
was completed in 1934 on land opposite Marine P&vkth the increase in
popularity of leisure bathing and also swimmingaasorganised sport, the
number of lidos proliferated in the early 20th ceptand a pool was
regarded as a necessary asset for any self-ragpessort.

New Brighton’s pool was, at its time, claimedbe ‘the largest aquatic
stadium in the world.” It was in a classic artdeesign with low horizontal
lines, sweeping curved corners and an internahdastng sun terrace.

Mo Brightess Sathung ol Frem /Fomant

The statistics of the pool are impressivee dttual bathing pool was 100m
X 68m (i.e. 16 laps to the mile compared with 64téalay’s average leisure
pool). The average water depth was 1.5m, extertdigsm in the diving
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2.3.4

2.35

2.3.6

2.4

24.1

area. The top diving board was 10m above the widierdower one at 3m.
The pool could hold 4000 bathers and some 20,08€&t&ors. The adjacent
marine lake was used as a storage and settlenmninta&onjunction with
the filtration of the salt water. During the fingstonth of opening 350,000
people were admitted of whom 87,400 were bathEng pool was the scene
for the Miss New Brighton contest which ran foryéars from 1949.

Sadly, the end of the pool came in Febru880iwhen hurricane winds of
over 100 mph caused the sea to surge and undetineirieundations of the
north west corner of the pool, causing the uppeacsitre to cave in. With an
estimated repair cost of £4 million it was decidledt the only option was
demolition and the site was cleared by Merseysieleeldpment Corporation
in the summer of 1990.

Marine Park Gardens and Mansions viewed acrossitieeof the former pool

Within the conservation area, the major €20lyn century development was
the construction of Portland Court on the site ofaB House in 1938-39

designed by Herbert Thearle. This is a brick faseden storey apartment
block with long bands of windows at each level anith concrete balconies

at the north and south ends

To the west, and immediately outside the exwagion area is the CIiff
Estate, on the site of CIiff Villa. The apartmehtxe are in two, sSixteen
storey concrete faced tower blocks.

ARCHAEOLOGY

The Historic Environment Record contains itetaf a prehistoric flint
working site on the promontory known as Red Noassyell as a historic
site associated with the cave at Yellow Noses fdsnaecessible from Rock
Villa. This contains incised dates and initiale earliest being 1619, but is
now sealed. The remaining HER records for the eelzie to recent listed
and other buildings.
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2.5 HISTORICAL ASSOCIATIONS

251 Towards the west end of Wellington Road, stoae pier on the north side
of the road is a ceramic plaque commemorating dbethat the inaugural
meeting of the Guide Dogs for the Blind Associatias held in the
adjacent house. Whilst this is not of townscageaicance it part of the
local distinctiveness and the commemorative plashauld be preserved.
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3.0
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3.1.1

3.1.2

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

LANDSCAPE AND VISTAS
FETTING AND RELATIONSHIP WITH THE SURROUNDING AREA

The setting of Wellington Road is quite op&io.the north are the foreshore
and the sea; to the west the land simultaneouslysdand the coast curves
back, so this area, adjoining Leasowe is also ofddre ground rises to the
south, leading into the main part of the town ofWN\#righton, whilst to the
east there are the buildings of the promenadengjiway to the Mersey
shoreline. The buildings to the east, south and meside some sense of
enclosure but views tend to be open and long distan

The road lies along the north edge of thaudrea. So whilst to the south,
and to a lesser extent to the east, the land islynai residential use, to the

north and west the open, lower lying ground reckmnirom the sea is

predominantly used for recreational purposes.

CHARACTER AND RELATIONSHIP OF SPACES

The land within the conservation area isaat main levels — Wellington
Road itself at the upper level, with the green sua& King's Parade at the
lower level.

King's Parade Gardens in the foreground with Weiton Road houses at the higher level
and rising ground behind

The first visual component Wellington Roads e rather open urban
character, with substantial properties set backftbe street, but also a
number of large trees. The buildings generallyohm@ne or two storeys, but
Marine Park Mansions, Portland Court, and CIiffl&8l are much taller,
giving a variety of scale.
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3.2.3

3.24

3.25

3.3

3.3.1

The lower level recreation areas, which casephe second component are
more or less completely open, and unbroken visugllyhe north end of
Portland Street. They are enclosed on their nedde by a fenced wind
break of low trees and shrubs, and to the souththbylow cliffs and
boundary walls of the Wellington Road properti€&ood views are obtained
of the whole grouping and variety of the Wellingt&toad villas and
Portland Court from these areas and the open tamaltls the sea wall

The pedestrian and vehicular links betweeseltiwo main character areas
are provided by the three north-south streets of/dea Street, Atherton
Street and Portland Street, all of which climb dilgdrom about sea level to
the head of the inland ridge parallel with the shor

At the east end of the conservation areahile visual component, Marine
Park, is a small rectangular late Victorian formpaik. It is enclosed by low
walls and railings, with wind break shrub plantinggoden fencing and a
vestigial shelter on the north. The park contansavilion, paths, formal
flower beds, a bowling green and tennis courtse ibrthern part towards
Kings Parade is level, whilst the southern parthwgeometrically laid out
pathways, rises gently to the retaining wall, ngd, entrance and viewing
platform on Wellington Road.

Marine Park Gardens

VIEWS AND VISTAS WITHIN THE AREA

On Wellington Road the views are largely owd to those along the street
itself and along the side streets. West of thdldat Street crossing the
view to the west is dominated by the slab of Podl&ourt and the towers of
the CIliff. The properties and their boundary waenerally close off the
views out to the sea although the sense of enelasuess towards the west
end beyond Portland Court. From the side strdeis possible to gain
elevated views to the north over the Mersey Baywig shipping lanes
across the low lying land behind the sea wall.wgieip the side streets attest
to the first scarp position of Wellington Road; #eEond escarpment beyond
is dominated by villas and modern developmentstakidvantage of even
more elevated views.
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3.4

34.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

3.4.4

3.4.5

3.4.6

(left) West view along Wellington Road; (right) Widown Portland Street and out to sea

GREEN SPACES AND PLANTING

The two principal formal green areas areMicgorian Marine Park and the
1930s King's Parade Gardens. Other green aredbheasenall wooded area
adjacent to The Cliff and the grounds and gardénmswidual houses.

Marine Park

Marine Park was laid out in the late 19thtwgnto a symmetrical design
with a central avenue facing the sea. Followirggdlope of the land, it rises
to the south in a series of terraces. Origindigy lower level, as shown on
the 1890s map, seems to have been a series of tavinesls with a formal
layout of diagonal paths either side of a centratdre — an island bed, statue
or fountain. This was all backed on the south biga formal screen of trees
and the enclosing boundary retaining wall and fence

By 1910 a central bandstand had appeared ahelter is indicated at the
west end.

The 1930s map shows that the lower parteoptirk had been reconfigured
to its present form. There is a central woodenilipay to the west are
bowling greens, while to the east are tennis courts

The dense shrub planting on the north andwand side backed by timber
fencing and integral shelter, combined with the iis level, mean that the
park is largely invisible from the promenade ateayever it relates much
better to Wellington Road itself as there is a nagen boundary.

King’s Parade Gardens and sunken triangular grasarea

These are shown for the first time on the0$9ap, being on stabilised
reclaimed land. They are bounded on the northlsyd€ing’s Parade itself

which is at a slightly higher level and acts asaaibr between the Gardens
and the sea. The Gardens are to the west of Ribr8&reet, and appear
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3.4.7

3.4.8

3.4.9

3.4.10

sunken but this is probably because the roads beee built up using
imported material.

(left) King’'s Parade Gardens putting green; (rigipen play area and embankment to
road

The triangular area to the east of Portlatrde§is simply grass, more
obviously sunken, and bounded on the north by alweeak belt of shrubs,
and on the south by the service road to the Weétim&oad properties.

The main part of the Gardens is a D- shapedl ia front of Yellow Noses

and contains open grass, bowling greens, tennidsc@uputting area and a
small modernist entrance pavilion in the centréhef north boundary. The
gardens are fenced on the three main sides, witar@es on the north and
east.

At the west end of Wellington Road is a snaka of semi-natural
woodland, formerly part of the grounds of Cliff Mil This is mainly of

sycamore with a fairly open ground layer so thatdrare a number of walks
through.

a8y -

(left) Woodland near The CIiff;( right) Mature teé gardens

The gardens of some of the older propeggasicularly towards the east end
of Wellington Road contain mature trees, mainlyasyore, which are more
tolerant of a marine environment.
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4.0
4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

TOWNSCAPE AND PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS
GRAIN, SCALE, REPETITION AND DIVERSITY

Although the conservation area is not laeggl contains only a relatively
small number of buildings there are four identifjabifferent forms of
development. These are:

= the four storey terrace,

= large detached villas,

= single or two storey villas merged into terracesl a
= the 1930’s apartment block.

The terrace known as Marine Park Mansionssdaom the 1890s and is
constructed of brick under a slated roof with proreg polygonal sandstone
bays and a mock timber framed third floor. Thettodloor rooms are in the
roof space and are lit by large north facing doeerlater alteration). The
ground floor level is slightly elevated above tbad and the building is set
back so there are small paved ‘gardens’ in fronlosed by railings between
brick piers. The terrace presents a very soli@ fiacthe road and is not
typical of the rest of the street as further propsron this side are half the
height and set much further back. The Mansionsbaik in response to
Marine Gardens opposite as the gardens provide wdloo& for the
apartments and their presence avoids the potdotiadverlooking which
would occur if there were residential propertiepagte.

Marine Park Mansions

There are two large mid 19th century detaefilsd — no 24, next to Marine
Park and Redcliffe on the corner of Atherton Stred@hese present two
storeys to Wellington Road but have a lower stameythe north fagade.
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They are set back approximately 15m from the figmtand stand in their
own extensive grounds. Architecturally they argeydifferent as no. 24 is a
late-Regency stucco finished house of classicgbgtmns and detailing,
whilst Redcliffe, from 1845 is in Victorian ‘Tudorstyle being of red

sandstone with parapets and gables to the roof waiitiple clustered

chimneys and stone mullioned windows.

24 Wellington Road () and Redcliffe

4.1.4 The most unusual features of the streetharento blocks of single storey, or
modest two storey stucco villas from about 183%heyTappear from the
Tithe Map (Appendix E1) to be individual propertigkich have coalesced
as a result of the construction of annexes anliisinfi

4.1.5 The houses have front gardens enclosed by wraattractive Gothick style
cast iron fences (which are listed) but the praogerare relatively open to
view. They are set 10 — 15m back from the pavemamtand the frontages
are subtly broken up by forward facing gabled wjtigg/s or conservatories.

28/ 30 Wellington Road () and 42 Wellington Road

4.1.6 In complete contrast to the first three tyge#ortland Court, the seven
storey apartment block from 1939. It is a talhelr block running on a
north-south axis at right angles to the streeha#t the effect of dividing the
development on the north side of Wellington Rodd two, separating the
few 1830s houses to the west from the majorithéodast. Although it has
architectural interest as an individual building,be reviewed later, it does
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4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.3

43.1

not respect the townscape pattern of the streetdardpts its scale and
continuity.

il G
aanag
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Portland Court

RRINCIPAL BUILDINGS AND FEATURES

Within the conservation area the dominantidimgs are Marine Park
Mansions and Portland Court, at opposite ends dfiMyon Road. The

west end of the conservation area is, however daeuhby the two blocks
of the development known as The CIiff, just outside conservation area
boundary.

The principal buildings, and the reason whyellwgton Road was
designated a conservation area, are the earlydd #iicentury buildings on
the north side of the road. They form a strikimgl @listinctive group of
buildings, very different in character from all eth in the locality.

The other principal features are Marine Raitk its trees and enclosing
walls at the east and the sports facilities of FriRarade Gardens.

BOUNDARIES AND SURFACES

Marine Park Gardens are enclosed by castfémcing panels over a low
brick wall which are well designed and form anaattive but open feature.
On the Wellington Road side of the gardens thedfesitargely unobstructed
and so there are views across the gardens. lorda® places vegetation is
beginning to encroach onto the fence and has paltémtcause damage and
so should be reduced or removed. The gardensihg@sing gates and
piers facing onto Rowson Street.
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4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

Many of the 19 century properties on Wellington Road have cast ir
decorative fencing, some with accompanying gatesnafching design.
These are all listed but they are in varying cooit

Fences at Marine Park Gardens () and fence to gaRey house

Kings Parade Gardens are enclosed by conventidoap ‘top’ fencing
which is regularly maintained. However to the wersdl there is an extent of
utilitarian grey diamond mesh fence which detr&cts the environment.

Some of the older houses have sandstonefraatl boundaries, one with
brick and ornamental terracotta. Houses and gardkmg Portland Street
are bounded by high sandstone walls of varying itiongin some cases the
walls form the structures of the properties. Oanaaly, vehicular access for
car parking has been created by the partial depwlf front boundary
walls. These have an unfortunate effect on theesscene and disturb the
continuity of the front boundaries and pavemenfeses.

Boundary wall in brick and terracotta
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4.3.5 Road surfaces are mainly standard tarmacadam, sdnwehich has large
aggregate rolled in to give some relief from umiday.

4.3.6 Pavements have a more varied palette of materite footpath on the north
side of Wellington Road which is constructed ofjtasandstone slabs with the
addition of small granite setts at vehicle crossjnigcations of seats and at
turnings. There is a small area of patterned huicits in one location. Just
outside the conservation area, on the south, atiekiarea of King's Gardens the
pavements are surfaced with concrete slabs, whheemdimited areas coloured
pink.
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5.0 ARCHITECTURE , MATERIALS AND DETAILS
5.1 FROMINENT STYLES
5.1.1 Wellington Road has no one overriding archutel style, but is instead

characterised by its particular mix of influencd$he 19th century buildings
can be broadly split into two categories:

= Classical / Italianate —These buildings are praopoed loosely according
to classical rules and adopt features such ascamnguoins, pilasters
and ground floor rustication. Many of the buildinigave an Italianate
character created particularly through projectingnices at eaves level
and in their detail around openings. Most rootlpis are relatively low
and occasionally behind a parapet. Windows arergéy sash type and
openings are positioned in a regular rhythm adiwes$acade.

Buildings with a classical or Italianate influence

= Vernacular Revival / Gothic — Buildings with detaderived from other
traditional building types. Influences include @iot Jacobean,
Elizabethan and Medieval building periods. In casitto the Classical /
Italianate buildings, roofs are more steeply pitched elevations have
fewer formal proportions and rules of design. Htams are generally
more complex and buildings are less likely to bewrsyetrical. Gables
with decorative bargeboards are used regularhgaisifes in the design
of buildings, and like openings, are shaped tceckfthe style of the
building. Chimneys are typically more prominentlarildings of these
styles. Pointed arch windows and hoodmoulds are @ste typical in
these dwellings.
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5.1.2

5.1.3

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

Buildings of a vernacular revival or gothic influesn

The late 19th century architecture of Mafaek Mansions owes a little to
the designs of Norman Shaw and others with its prent stone clad bays
and stone balcony with railings over the elaborataah.

Portland Court is a derivative of the 193@srhational style with its strong
rectilinear form, sweeping lines of windows, plgtass entrance porch, its
use of marine views and its minimalist detailingowever the use of brick
in such buildings is a northern, perhaps Britistsposse and tends to dilute
the machine aesthetic of the style. The replacewnfahe original windows
with UPVC windows which have heavy frames dilutes streamlined style
of the horizontal bands of windows.

KNOWN ARCHITECTS AND DESIGNERS

The most notable architect represented iniMgedn Road is H L Elmes
who designed Redcliffe, n0.34 in 1845. Harvey ldahs Elmes is most
famous for his designs for St. George’s Hall Livepof 1840 one of the
major monuments of neo-classical architecture. ikirslvement with the
construction of the Liverpool building was highlyressful for him and
arguably contributed to his early death in Jama&icd847. In his short
working life he completed a few other designs i tiverpool area and in
London, a number of which have now been demolisised surviving
completed commissions are few.

Portland Court, from 1938/9 was designed &éspbeit Thearle FRIBA (1904
— 1971), founder of a Liverpool practice which wagkmainly in the north
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5.2.3

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

5.4.3

5.4.4

west. Thearle was a friend of Edward Chambre Hardand appears in a
number of photographs by him.

Cliff Estate (just west of the conservatiogaa is by Stephenson, Young and
Partners a Manchester based practice and dated 62

MATERIALS

The dominant walling finish seen within thenservation area is coloured
render. However other buildings — particularly MariPark Mansions and

Portland Court are in brick, whilst Redcliffe isred sandstone. The use of
white or pale coloured render finish is typical s#aside locations and

responds well to the strong light which often prisv&ome darker tones and
strongly coloured details can detract from thisgkmaethos.

A number of buildings have flat roofs, bué thredominant material for
pitched roofs is Welsh slate, in some cases cungeaally, or with curves
to produce scale-like effects.

Cast iron fencing is a characteristic featdihe area.

TypPICAL FEATURES AND DETAILS

For the purposes of the consideration of whéypical’ it is necessary to
make certain exclusions from the range of buildimg®Vellington Road.

Portland Court is a one-off set piece design whia$ its own qualities and
characteristics which are quite different from amy else in the street.
Arguably Marine Park Mansions is also a-typicahaltgh its forms are
closer to those of the majority of the buildings.

Windows: Many windows have strong vertical proportions, aire there
are expanses of windows they are assemblies ofntltow units. Other
windows whilst retaining this verticality have theore traditional Georgian
sash window proportions. Where windows face tlaensany extend to floor
level and contain French doors. In combinatiorhlie tall lights there are
also, in many cases small fanlights which occuptecqusmall proportion of
the overall opening height.

Most frames are white painted, though a smathber have colours. In a
number of cases coloured glass is used in windorgingor fanlights.

A distinctive feature of the area is the etabon of window heads. Whilst
the majority remain square-headed, there arentiaarched heads, gothic
pointed heads and also four-centre Tudor arch heddsa number of
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5.4.5

5.4.6

5.4.7

5.4.8

5.4.9

examples there are odd numbers of clustered windeitfs the centre
windows higher than those at the sides.

Doors: Generally of painted wood, quite a number are ghated with
designs reflecting the window patterns describexd/@b

Chimneys: These are, in many cases quite elaborate and emtadh The
basic form is brick with two or three corbelled cses surmounted by
terracotta chimney pots. The next stage of elaioorss that the brickwork
Is painted. In other cases the brickwork is reedeavith elaborate rendered
cornice details. Many of the terracotta pots aietpd to match (or in a few
cases contrast with) the stacks. In one examgléereacotta details are left
in their natural colour on an otherwise paintedclsta In the case of
Redcliffe, the chimney stacks are in stone, witteeaed stone shafts, (now
braced with iron stays) generally in clusters sat tihey are a significant
feature of the property.

Roof details: The roofs themselves are almost all slated. Indimgs of
Italianate influence they are not steeply pitched #erefore not very
prominent. However, none of the roof edges isnplar lacking in
architectural treatment. There are simple claspiaepets with moulded
cornice details to which are added, in some casedded plaster friezes.
There are projecting Italianate style eaves withosed (mock) rafter and
purlin ends. There are simple cavetto mouldedicesn and in two cases
so-called ‘tent style’ roofs — timber imitations fabric tent canopies. On
the Gothic style properties there are elaboratecgiebarge boards with
finials and pendants. A number of the propertiesehslate roofing
ornamented to give a fish-scale pattern

Fences and gatesThe use of iron fencing is a particular charastierof the
area. The earliest examples are used to form tteet ooundary of the
Regency houses on Wellington Road. Typically tbeysist of a series of
panels which are bolted together to form a visuadigtinuous screen. They
are about 1.2m in height with closely set palings @laborate, often Gothick
details. As is typical of sand-cast panels of thie strength factors require
that there is a greater proportion of iron to vibidn in fences incorporating
wrought metal (iron or steel). In some cases thacihg presents a
continuous top rail, elsewhere it is topped withedes of decorative finials.
In a number of cases the fencing includes matchatgs. These fences are
all listed.

Elsewhere the fencing becomes more operyle sb that the most recent
type is that enclosing Kings Parade Gardens witipla steel rod palings
and hoop heads.
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6.0
6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

NEGATIVE FACTORS

OVERVIEW

A study of this nature cannot attempt to kol every part of the built

environment that has a detrimental impact on tlaeadter or setting of the
conservation area; instead this report summaribes niost obviously

apparent examples and key problems within theezwagon area as a way
of encouraging an understanding and awarenesss¥ thsues.

Appendix D to this document is a plan showthg contribution of
individual buildings to the character of the conaéipn area. The plan was
produced as a tool to gain an understanding o§it@ficance of different
parts of the area and to help understand the apai@pess of the boundary.
This plan categorizes each building, or group diidings into the following
groupings:

A: (Red) — Buildings that are critical to the claes of the area:
typically these may be landmark buildings andBatdings with
most of their original character retained

B: (Yellow) — Buildings that contribute positively the character of
the conservation area: buildings may have sonegatilbns but
original character is still prominent

C: (Green) — Neutral - Either modern buildings itifel interest or
buildings where historic character has been logbieg economic
recovery.

D: (Blue) — Buildings that detract from the sigo#nce or character
of the area.

RECENT DEVELOPMENT

The most significant large scale 20th centieyelopments to have affected
the conservation area are:

= the reclamation of the foreshore and establishimieting’s Parade

= the construction of Portland Court

= the construction of The Cliff

6.2.2 The establishment of King's Parade enabled thetaat®n of the gardens to

the south and hence brought into existence pathefland now designated
within the conservation area. Between the ‘gremmdbwhich these and Marine
Park Gardens constitute, and the sea wall itsedf Ire and unprepossessing
open area, largely devoted to car parking.
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6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

The vacant site of the former bathing podtadts from the setting of the
conservation area. It is currently open ground)wie middle area sunken,
and is used as informal parking. It is screened ttegree by low dense
planting on the south but nevertheless weakens\vbgrll character of the
area and contributes to the rather bleak and wiepswharacter of the
foreshore and promenade.

Portland Court, whilst being completely d#at in physical character from
the majority of the buildings in Wellington Roadedohave its own strong
gualities which make it very much a positive additito the area, whilst
being of a different scale from the pre-existingdings. It is from the age
of the great ocean liners and its strong lineamfevith north and south
balconies have something of their aesthetic quality

The same cannot be said of The CIiff, adpgrthe conservation area. This
development of twin tower blocks with associatethga structures has no
architectural merit and has a negative impact erctiaracter of Wellington
Road. At sixteen storeys the blocks are more thace the height of
Portland Court and hence dominate the surroundags) the higher level
land to the south. They provide an unfortunatswie to Wellington Road
and draw the eye. The block-like forms have ndlstyband are forbidding
in appearance. The dark concrete does not pagatespthe light and colour
of a sea shore location. Associated with the ntarers are low level
concrete framed garage blocks which are also rvegatitheir contribution.

There appears to be work in progress at Redoh a new dwelling on the
ground alongside. This is of a low, pyramidal forthis not possible at this
stage, from the evidence on site to comment oragipeopriateness of this
scheme but the setting is a particularly sensdive:

UNSYMPATHETIC EXTENSIONS

Many of the buildings remain ‘as built orvieahad only modest and
relatively sympathetic extensions in the past and manner which follows
the character of the original construction.

The property known as Redcliffe has, however béteneal and extended in
a very unsympathetic manner. The facade of thpgptp which faces the
sea has two flat-roofed additions, one in stone,inomendered material and
both with large ‘picture’ windows considerably aftproportion with the
walls in which they are set. Flat roofed brickemdions and additions to the
Wellington Road side along with steel windows ader affect the
appearance of this significant historic building.

The property as a whole could be consideredsk’ as the property appears

to be unoccupied and suffering from a lack of nemance. The property is

one of the few remaining residential propertiesgies] by the influential
Liverpool architect Harvey Lonsdale Elmes (desigone6t George’s Hall)
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6.3.4

Update

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

and as such is worthy of repair and restoratiothéchighest standards. At
present its poor condition seriously detracts ftbenquality of the area and
is an unfortunate reflection on the level of resmerorded to one of the
most significant architects of the day.

Number 46 Wellington Road has a small sistpeey side porch which is
inappropriate to the design of the property beiddea to the side of an
otherwise symmetrical elevation, and being constriof non-traditional
materials.

03-2009. Work had been progressing di20@g to refurbish Redcliffe,
and permission granted for restoration of certl@ments, e.g. the windows.
However, after several months of work, which ineldd the full
reconstruction of the chimneys, repair work is nowabeyance. This is
regrettable, especially since the roof has beeppstl of its slate and
because its roof was an important feature of theséawith its decorative
patterning. The Council will do its utmost to semat this important
restoration work is carried as far as possibléstoanclusion.

UNSYMPATHETIC ALTERATIONS

The most common type of alteration to prgpattpresent seems to be the
replacement of traditional timber windows with uP\éGuivalents. These
changes are detrimental for a number of reasons:

= Change in the proportion of glazing divisions coompises the overall
design integrity

= UPVC frames are weaker than timber or metal egemntaland therefore
require greater thickness to provide adequategttren

= Fine subdivisions of glazing are not possible ivGRexcept by ‘stick-
on’ or other rather basic methods, and there isreml loss of subtlety
of detall

There is considerable commercial pressuren fithose who market
replacement glazing to carry out this work. Howetleere is a viable
alternative by repairing any defective glazing amserting a slim profile
secondary glazing system.
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6.4.3

6.4.4

Varied replacement windows, generally diluting tharacter of the property

Replacing windows which have a strongly ealtsystem of subdivisions
with large ‘picture’ type glazing is heavily detemtal to the character of the
properties.  The incorporation of fanlights with strong horizontal
orientation is also inappropriate.

There also appears to have been a progranimeplacement of the
windows at Portland Court. It is likely that theiginal windows were

Crittall steel casement windows. These are cuyetfgwed as providing

poor thermal performance and needing high maintanahough both these
alleged defects can be remedied. The new windppsaa to be uPVC.

They have heavy vertical subdivisions and thewe lsss of the streamlined
effect which slimmer glazing bars would have aféatd

(left) Portland Court showing older steel glazingottom left) and newer uPVC units
(elsewhere); (right) Marine Park Mansions, showipgorly proportioned dormers and
reduced window heights.

6.4.5 Alterations have recently been carried out andhattime of writing are still in

progress at Marine Park Mansions. Windows haveeharigeen replaced with
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6.4.6

white uPVC. In general, the window divisions remais previously with a

simple mid-rail at half the height of the windoim some cases ‘fan-lights’ have
been inserted with less satisfactory visual resul®ne of the properties has
shorter windows set within the original structuwpknings, making use of uPVC
‘boards’ to fill the gaps between the lower windbeads and the full structural
opening. The result is visually obtrusive. Atstlproperty also the dormer
windows have a strong and unsympathetic horizartadhasis. Narrow, taller
units, with gables would probably have been matisfaatory.

Whilst the properties are generally painted in en@sthetic palette of pale
colours there are some examples where darker tanésstrongly coloured
details are discordant. Listed buildings requoasent for colour changes from
when the building was first listed.
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6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3

6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

RPuBLIC REALM

About 50% of the conservation area, includiimg’s Parade Gardens and
Marine Park lies within the public domain. Generalintenance standards
appear to be commensurate with the standing ardsstd the spaces,
though not of the highest quality. The main deficly, and this probably is a
result of the location, is the standard of the emsend of King’'s Parade
Gardens where there is inappropriate fencing andcaomulation of wind
blown litter. There is dense windbreak plantinguad the Gardens but in
some cases this is rather thin and could be entlance

Street surfaces and enclosure are to a gaodasd, and there are some good
guality bus shelters on King’'s Parade in front arie Park.

Loss ANDDEVELOPMENT PRESSURES

The two notable losses from the conservatiea took place more than fifty
years ago. At the west end of Wellington roadhengite of The CIiff was a
large property in its own extensive grounds knownGdiff Villa. This
appears on the earliest maps and its form is ané&t rectangle parallel to
the shore with bow fronts at east and west endsnofe modest property
known as Ewart House was demolished to make wayddtand Court.

There appears to have been no significaahtéoss of buildings within the
conservation area. Many of the historic buildiags listed and so protected
against demolition, and the other older structwaes regarded as having
sufficient residual value to make conversion andraging financially
viable.

Such development pressures as exist appbarttwards the subdivision of
single houses into apartments and the provisiomafe garaging in the
gardens facing the sea. The visibility of thesenfrpublic areas can be a
matter of concern. In the case of the listed Regenoperties this has been
achieved without unfortunate effects. The unligieaperties (52 and 54) at
the west end of Wellington Road have been treass $ympathetically in
the recent changes and conversions.

CHANGES TO THE SETTING OF THE CONSERVATION AREA

The adverse effects of the development kresvihhe Cliff have been noted
and can hardly be overstated.

The fact that the south boundary of the awasien area generally follows
the middle of Wellington Road (with the exceptioh Marine Park
Mansions) rather than the rear of the propertiethersouth side means that
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6.7.3

6.7.4

6.7.5

this south boundary is visually weak. The ‘scgme'sented by Wellington
Road includes the front gardens and facades gbriygerties on both sides
and the character of the road is determined as ioyiethat happens to the
properties on the south as those on the north.

The properties towards the east end on thi# side are arguably as good a
quality as Marine Park Mansions and could be iredudithin the area.
Fortunately, they remain relatively unaltered amd umcompromised by
recent interventions.

The properties to the west of Portland Stogethe south side are more
conventional inter- war semi detached houses wass larchitectural

distinction. Apart from the general replacemenividows there are few

visually intrusive alterations. Whilst they arelikely to be candidates for

inclusion in the conservation area it would be e if special attention

could be given to any proposed changes for whiainrphg permission is

required so that the overall character is not edut

The promenade area remains bleak and ratimelswept although hard

landscape is of a reasonable quality. It is ingyrthat the reserved matters
on the outline application are of high architedtupaality and enhance the

area. Car parking needs to be well landscapedder do reduce its impact

on views from the conservation area.
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7.0 SUMMARY OF SPECIAL CHARACTER

7.1 The following is a list of attributes which pealefine the special character of
the Wellington Road conservation area:

It is an important and very early example of a pithspeculative estate
of upper-middle class housing on previously undgyed land,;

The area contains a significant group of early Xethtury listed villas of
similar architectural character with long slopiragdens towards the sea;
Most buildings are relatively intact with the maigrof their principal
features surviving;

Buildings are constructed of high quality materialgth the use of
rendered facades in pale colours and slate rob&ngy prominent;
There is a high level of architectural and somewimatsual detailing, in
particular that of the rendered facades;

Good quality original cast iron fencing and gatépa®main around
Marine Park and on the frontage of the villas tdliwmgton Road;

All of the main buildings have a northerly view oueaverpool Bay and
are designed to take account of this view;

Kings Parade Gardens and the adjoining open spabe idip by Kings
Parade provide an open area in front of Wellindgmad and give good
views of its villas;

Good views are obtained from Marine Park towards Ferch Rock and
the Perch Rock Lighthouse; and

The association of the area with the foundatiothefGuide Dogs for the
Blind Association.
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